
 

 

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Helen Morgan 
 (Tel: 01443 864267   Email: morgah@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Date: 24th February 2016 

 
 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
A meeting of the Community Council Liaison Sub-Committee will be held in the Council Chamber, 
Penallta House, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach on Wednesday, 2nd March, 2016 at 7.00 pm to consider 
the matters contained in the following agenda. 
 
A pre-meeting will be held at 6.30p.m. for all County Borough Members in the Ebbw Room and all 
Community Council Members in the Council Chamber. 
 

Members are reminded that if they have any specific issues they wish to raise at the meeting they should 
advise the Clerk prior to that date in order that a response can be made available. 

 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Chris Burns 

INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Pages 
  

1  To receive apologies for absence. 
  

 
2  Declarations of Interest.   

Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal 
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on this agenda in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for 
both Councillors and Officers.  
 

Public Document Pack



3  To consider and approve the minutes of the meeting held on 2nd December 2015 (minute nos. 1 
- 5). 

1 - 4  
 

4  Matters Arising. 
  

 
To discuss the following issues raised by the Town and Community Council Liaison Committee: -   
 
5  Update on the Public Health (Wales) Bill - The Bill is currently at Stage 3 of the process. 

  
 

6  Response to the Local Government (Wales)  Bill - report presented to Council on 26th January 
2016 attached. 

5 - 12  
 

7  Review of the Charter - copy attached. 
13 - 18  

 
 
Circulation: 
Councillors Mrs A. Blackman, D. Bolter, C.J. Cuss, H.R. Davies, Miss E. Forehead, L. Gardiner, 
C. Hawker, A.G. Higgs, G. J. Hughes, M.P. James, L. Jones, Ms P. Leonard, A. Lewis, J. Pritchard, 
J.A. Pritchard and J.E. Roberts 
 
Cabinet Member:  N. George (Cabinet Member for Community and Leisure Service) 
 
Community/Town Councillors 
M. Stretch (Aber Valley Community Council), G. Lewis (Argoed Community Council), H. Llewellyn 
(Bargoed Town Council), Mrs A. McConnell (Bedwas. Trethomas and Machen Community Council), 
J. Criddle (Blackwood Town Council), Mrs J. Hibbert (Caerphilly Town Council), T. Powell (Darran Valley 
Community Council), T. Hall (Drathen, Waterloo and Rudry Community Council), Mrs T. Parry (Gelligaer 
Community Council), Mrs A. Reed (Llanbradach and Pwllypant Community Councl), Mrs J. Rao 
(Maesycwmmer Community Council), Mrs K. Jones (Nelson Community Council), B. Allen (Penyrheol, 
Trecenydd and Energlyn Community Council), D. Woodman (New Tredegar Commnuity Council), 
D.T. Williams (Rhymney Community Council), J. Blackburn (Risca East Community Council), M. Parker 
(Risca Town Council) and Mrs E. Macey (Van Community Council) 
 
Clerks to all Community/Town Councils and Appropriate Officers 



 
 

 

 

 

 

COMMUNITY COUNCIL LIAISON SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT COUNCIL OFFICES, PENALLTA HOUSE, 

YSTRAD MYNACH ON WEDNESDAY 2ND DECEMBER 2015 AT 7.00PM 
 

 
PRESENT: 

 
Ms J. Rao - Chair  

 
Councillors: 

 
 Mrs A. Blackman, D. Bolter, C.J. Cuss, C. Hawker, J.A. Pritchard, J.E. Roberts 
  

    

Community/Town Council Representatives 
 

Aber Valley    -  
Argoed     -  
Bargoed    -  
Bedwas, Trethomas and Machen - Ms L.  Jones,  
Blackwood    -  
Caerphilly    - Mrs J. Hibbert  
Darran Valley    -  
Draethen, Waterloo and Rudry  -  
Gelligaer    - Ms. C. Mortimer (Clerk) 
Llanbradach    - Mrs. A. Reed, Mr. W.M. Thompson (Clerk) 
Maesycwmmer   - Miss. J. Rao 
Nelson     -  
New Tredegar    -  
Penyrheol, Trecenydd and Energlyn - Mrs. H. Treherne (Clerk)  
Rhymney    -   
Risca East     -   
Risca Town     - M. Parker, B. Campbell (Clerk)  
Van     - Mrs. E. Macey 
 

Together with 
 

S. Harris (Interim Head of Corporate Finance), H.C. Morgan (Senior Committee Services 
 Officer) 

 
1. APOLOGIES 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors H. Davies, A.G. Higgs, G.J. 

Hughes, A. Lewis, J. Pritchard and J.A. Pritchard, Community Councillors H. Llewellyn, 
J.B. Criddle, Mrs T. Parry and B. Allen and Mrs. S. Hughes, Mr. G. James, Mrs. L. Tams, 
Mrs. S. Chick, Mr. J. Hold, Mr. K. Williams, Mr. G. Williams, Mrs. G. Thomas and Mr. J. 
Dilworth (Clerks of Aber Valley, Argoed and Risca East, Bargoed, Bedwas, Trethomas 
and Machen and Draethen, Waterloo and Rudry, Blackwood, Caerphilly, Darran Valley 
and Rhymney, Maesycwmmer and Van Community/Town Councils respectively). 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2. MINUTES - 29TH JULY 2015 

 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 29th July 2015  (a copy had been sent to each 
member) were received and noted. There were no matters arising.  

 
 
3. DRAFT SAVINGS PROPOSALS FOR 2016/17 

 
Mr S. Harris (Interim Head of Corporate Finance) gave a presentation on the draft savings 
proposals for 2016/17. In order to put the budget into context, he gave an overview of the 
financial outlook and advised that details of the Welsh Government Provisional 2016/17 
Local Government Settlement would not be received until the 9th December 2015. In 
anticipation of this a report had been presented to Cabinet on the 14th October 2015. 
Copies of this report had been circulated with the agenda and previously distributed to 
each Clerk. 

 
By way of background, Mr Harris advised that at the meeting of Council on the 25th 
February 2015, a report had been presented which, based on information available at that 
time, identified a potential savings requirement of £26.14m for 2016/17 and 2017/18. This 
assumed a 3.3% cut in Welsh Government funding for both years. 

 
Mr Harris referred to the UK Government Comprehensive Spending Review undertaken 
during the summer and autumn of 2015 and noted that savings of between 25% and 40% 
had been indicated for non-protected areas. This was likely to impact on the level of 
Welsh Government funding for Local Government in Wales and as a result the report 
presented to Cabinet on the 14th October included details of an updated potential savings 
requirement of £35.19m for the three-year period 2016/17 to 2018/19.  

 
With the aid of a pie chart Mr Harris demonstrated how Caerphilly CBC currently spends 
its money in each service area (£325.62m - revenue budget 2015/16). He advised 
Members that throughout the process of identifying potential savings the Council had 
agreed a number of principles. These were to protect front-line services where we can, 
reduce expenditure on management and administrative costs, increase fees and charges 
where appropriate, reduce rather than remove services where possible, to focus on 
priorities and to look at alternative ways of delivering services (collaboration, partnerships, 
community trusts, etc.).   

 

 Mr. Harris then made further reference to the report presented to Cabinet on the 14th 
October 2015 and advised of the draft savings proposals for 2016/17 (£12.432m) with a 
proposed 3.9% increase in Council Tax. It was confirmed that 69.7% (£8.661m) of the 
proposed 2016/17 savings have a nil impact on the public. However, the proposed savings 
will result in the loss of up to 130 posts (51 of which are currently vacant). It was noted 
that potential savings for 2017/18 were included as an appendix to the Cabinet report 
although; apart from agreement to consult on Home to School/College Transport, 
agreement of these savings proposals was not being sought at this stage.  

 
 Reference was then made to the consultation process which was launched on 19th 
 October 2015 and runs to 8th January 2016 (12 weeks) and to the methods that are being 
 used to engage the public and enable them to have an opportunity to provide comments 
 on the list of draft savings for 2016/17: -. 
 

– Online and paper consultation. 
– Articles in Newsline. 
– Use of Social Media. 

Page 2



– Face to Face: Making use of the Customer Service Vehicle, series of Drop-In 
Sessions across the borough, Viewpoint Panel, Community Groups, Special 
Interest Groups, Youth/Junior Forums, 50+ Forum etc. 

– Engagement with employees and the Trade Unions. 
– Consultation with Town and Community Councils. 
– Consultation with the Voluntary Sector. 
 

In addition to the above, there has been a series of special scrutiny committee meetings 
where Members have considered detailed reports on the savings proposals that will have 
an impact on the public (copies have been made available to each Clerk). Following the 
closure of the  consultation process, a further detailed report will be presented to Cabinet 
and Council in February 2016. This report will include details of the Welsh Government 
Provisional 2016/17 Local Government Settlement and revised savings requirements. 

 
A query was raised in relation to match-funding. Mr Harris advised that a community 
schemes budget was established in 2015/16 to provide some match-funding where cuts 
have previously been made.    

 
 In view of the unprecedented financial situation, concerns were expressed at proposals to 
 look at alternative ways of delivering services (collaboration, partnerships etc) and a query 
 was raised as to whether community/town councils would be invited to participate. Mr 
 Harris advised that a decision would be required to take this forward and that any 
 such concerns should be submitted as part of the consultation process. He indicated that  
 he would accept responses until the third week of January in order that they can be 
 incorporated into the Cabinet/Council reports in February.   
 
 Those present thanked Mr. Harris for his informative presentation and for responding to 
 the queries raised during the course of the debate.  
 
 

4. COMMUNITY/TOWN COUNCIL CHARTER 

 

It was agreed that a Group be established (comprising of Ms C. Mortimer, B. Thompson 
 and B. Campbell) to consider any revisions that may be required to the Charter.   

 
 

5. DATA PROTECTION/FREEDOM AWARENESS RAISING SESSION  

 

 Reference was made to an offer from the Information Commissioners Office to provide 
 Data Protection/Freedom of Information Awareness Raising Sessions for community/town 
 councils. Members welcomed such training and it was agreed that the necessary 
 arrangements be made with the respective Officer.  
 
  
 
 The meeting closed at 8pm  
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

COUNCIL – 26TH JANUARY 2016 

 
SUBJECT: CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL RESPONSE TO THE 

DRAFT LOCAL GOVERNMENT (WALES) BILL 
 

REPORT BY: INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 For Council to endorse the proposed Caerphilly County Borough Council’s response to the 

Welsh Government consultation on the Draft Local Government (Wales) Bill. 
 
 
2. SUMMARY 

2.1 This report sets out a proposed Caerphilly County Borough Council response to the Welsh 
Government consultation on the Draft Local Government (Wales) Bill, which is strongly based 
on the premise that the best outcome for our communities is that Caerphilly County Borough 
Council remains as a stand-alone Authority. 

 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The Draft Local Government (Wales) Bill is the Minister for Public Services’ 

vision for Local Government in Wales and is based on activist Councils, engaged in delivering 
modern, accessible, high quality public services with their local communities. The Bill closely 
aligns with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, the Social Services and 
Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 and the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) 
Regulations 2011, and the performance management framework for Local Government in 
Wales. 

 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 The objective of the Draft Bill is to complete the programme of Local Authority mergers and 

set out a new and reformed legislative framework for Local Authority democracy, 
accountability, performance, some elements of finance, and establish a statutory Public 
Services Staff Commission. A round table discussion was held with the political leaders on drafting the 
Caerphilly County Borough Council response to the consultation. It was emphasised that the starting basis 
of the response is that Caerphilly County Borough Council wishes to retain its position as a stand-alone 
Authority.  Political Groups and individual Members are able to respond separately to the consultation 
which closes on 15th February 2016. 

 
4.2 The consultation document sets out the key aspects of the draft Bill under eight parts and the 

following responses are proposed to the consultation questions under the various parts. 
  

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



4.3 PART 1: Local Government Areas and County Councils 
Part 1 of the Draft Bill contains the provisions which will establish new Counties and their 
Councils, specifying the Local Government areas, the constitution and election of the new 
Councils and providing for establishment of the new Councils. The following response is made 
to this section: 
 
Caerphilly County Borough Council wishes to retain its position as a stand-alone Authority as 
the best outcome for our communities, although the close collaborative work as documented 
in the consultation being undertaken across the Gwent region is noted and valued by the 
Council. The Council would also like to keep its County Borough status, if mechanisms to 
preserve historic ceremonial rights, including city and borough status could be made as 
referred to under Part 1 of the consultation document. 
 
On what are your views on the options for 2 or 3 Counties in North Wales, as set out in 
Schedule 1 to the Draft Bill? It is commented that it is inappropriate for a South East Wales 
Council to respond to this question on reconfiguration of Local Authorities in North Wales. 
 
On what are your views on the proposed configuration of Local Government areas in Wales? 
It is recognised that it is appropriate to review the configuration of Local Government in 
Wales. However, whilst Local Government is well placed to offer a view on the appropriate 
configuration going forward, we find little evidence of those views being taken into account.  

 
The proposed Gwent Unitary Authority would be the largest in Wales in terms of population, 
cover a large geographical area, and, more importantly, encompass communities with a 
diverse socio-economic profile and different needs and priorities. These multiple challenges 
present a risk which we believe can be mitigated if Welsh Government were to move away 
from the proposal of a single Authority in Gwent. 

 
This consultation does not clearly demonstrate how local government re-organisation will be a 
cheaper option than retaining the current system, while encouraging greater collaboration. It is 
surprising that the consultation is stating - Ministers have agreed that there “should be a 
moratorium on the establishment of any new collaborations and partnerships prior to finalising 
the map” given the drive by Welsh Government for greater and better collaboration over the 
years. Appropriate collaboration can lead to greater efficiency of public services, and without 
the extensive costs of wholesale local government re-organisation. 
 
On what are your views on the procedure for naming the new Counties? It is reiterated that 
Caerphilly County Borough Council wishes to remain as a stand-alone Authority. 
 
On do you have any general comments on the provisions of the Draft Bill relating to Local 
Government finance? It is recognised with growing devolution that - the Welsh Government 
has to consult on proposals including separate legislation dedicated to the mechanisms for 
distributing, raising, managing and accounting for the funding of Local Government...to design 
a system which takes account of wider changes to the powers and fiscal responsibilities of the 
Assembly, and devolves greater financial independence and responsibility to Local 
Authorities. However, the issue of considerable variation of council tax levels across the 
Gwent region remains a key issue for Caerphilly County Borough Council residents, 
particularly as Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council’s council tax is more than 30% higher 
than Caerphilly’s. 

 
4.4 PART 2: General Power of Competence 

The provisions of Part 2 relate to County Councils’ general power of competence and set out 
the conditions which Community Councils must meet in order to be Community Councils with 
competence. The following response is made to Part 2: 
 
While the call for a general power of competence is welcomed, the Council notes that as 
drafted, it is severely constrained by legal provisions which local authority lawyers would have 
to carefully consider before the power could be used. 
 

Page 6



On do you have any comments on our proposals relating to Community Councils with 
competence? It is responded that we do not oppose Community Councils determining for 
themselves if they wish to have the general power of competence. We note, however, that 
there is no power of withdrawal until a subsequent election. 

 
4.5 PART 3: Promoting Access to Local Government 

This Part contains provisions relating to promoting access to Local Government.  It gives an 
overview of the provisions in requiring Local Authorities to encourage public participation in 
Local Government. It establishes community area committees for ensuring that community 
interests and priorities are taken into account by the Council. It deals with improvement 
requests by which a Council enters into discussions with community bodies for the purpose of 
improving local outcomes. It extends public access to Local Authority meetings and requires 
Local Authorities to publish a guide to their constitution and publish the official addresses of 
their members. The following response is made: 
 
The proposal to strengthen Community Councils and introduce Area Committees is, in part at 
least, a response to the scale of the proposed new unitary authorities. However, the need to 
strengthen and introduce these additional tiers of local government supports our view that in 
areas, such as Gwent, for example, the proposed Authorities are too large, and it would be 
better for Caerphilly County Borough Council to remain as a stand-alone Authority. 

 
Promoting access and public participation in Local Government is welcomed.  Caerphilly 
County Borough Council through its community planning processes has in the past 
established community area forums for ensuring that community interests and priorities are 
taken into account by the Council. These area forums were actively used as a means of 
engagement by the Council. The potential is there to develop this aspect further in the light of 
the Bill and the requirements of the Future Generations legislation. 

 
We note the suggestion within the Draft Bill that Area Committees may be based on Upper 
Super Output Areas which may not be sufficiently representative particularly for less populous 
areas. Clearly, if they are smaller, they become more numerous and therefore more costly. 
 
On do you have any comments on the proposed public participation duty and the requirement 
to consult on the annual budget. The proposed public participation duty and the requirement 
to consult on the annual budget are supported. The Council is currently actively engaged with 
local people and the Voluntary and Community Sector on its budget setting. However, we 
question the need for local authorities to produce a strategy and suggest that a duty to 
encourage and promote participation would be sufficient. 

 
It is not clear to us why councils should have such duties and responsibilities over other 
autonomous connected authorities i.e. Community Councils, Fire and Rescue Authorities and 
National Park Authorities - in producing a statutory public participation strategy.  This not only 
has resource implications on councils but also clouds accountability and responsibility for 
delivering on public participation duties. 
 
On how should community representatives to sit on community area committees be sought 
and selected? Caerphilly Council would do this through open consultation and engagement 
with the Voluntary Sector Liaison Committee in the borough, and through the Gwent 
Association of Voluntary Organisations our local County Voluntary Council. 
 
On do you agree County Councils should be able to delegate functions to a community area 
committee?  Notwithstanding our earlier comments in a scenario where the substantive 
elements of the Draft Bill are introduced the principle of Councils delegating functions to a 
community area committee is supported. However, we have the following concerns: 
- The proposals as drafted remain complex and could be construed as creating another tier 

of governance.  
- Should council functions be devolved, there are issues in terms of clouding 

executive/scrutiny roles and accountability. 

Page 7



- Would community/public body co-optees be subject to the member code of conduct and 
proposed new performance duties on councillors? 

- There is a risk that strengthening the role of unelected co-optees will undermine the 
electoral process and with it the role of elected members; we would be interested to learn 
how this risk will be mitigated. 

- Community Area Committees will place an additional burden on authorities in terms of 
administration as well as in translation and electronic broadcasting requirements.   

 
On do you have any views on whether transitional arrangements need to be put in place for 
existing area committees, or is a good lead-in time sufficient? It is noted what appears to be 
additionally required through the Draft Bill in setting up Area Committees is onerous and 
would require transitional arrangements. 

 
On do you have any comments on the revised provisions for improvement requests or on the 
interaction between these provisions and those relating to the public participation duty (Part 3, 
Chapter 2) and community area committees (Part 3, Chapter 3)? In relation to improvement 
requests the consultation notes that - The Draft Bill includes provisions which oblige Local 
Authorities to enter into a dialogue with community bodies about how an outcome can be 
improved on receiving a request from a community body... The definition of community bodies 
is widely drawn. The procedure sets out that at the end of a period of dialogue, the Local 
Authority will publish on its website a summary of the discussions and the actions that have 
been agreed. We will expect both Local Authorities and community bodies to hold to the 
matters they have agreed publicly – while the thrust of this is supported we have the following 
concerns: 
- Councils already initiate and respond to improvement requests thus the improvement 

requests proposal as drafted risks over-formalising the process and creating a significant 
amount of bureaucracy which could impact on the speed of decision-making. 

- With the definition of community bodies being widely drawn there is a risk of multiple 
requests, perhaps regarding the same issue, adding to potential bureaucracy particularly 
where conflicting requests are made. 

 
On do you have any comments on any of our further proposals relating to access to 
meetings? It is responded Caerphilly County Borough Council already has in place two of 
these proposals: 
- Electronic publication of notices of meetings. 

- Keep and maintain minutes of meetings of the Executive. 

There is no objection to: 
- Electronic summons 

- Removal of the restriction for Community Councils on having meetings in licensed 
premises on the assumption that alcohol is not available during the meeting. 

 
However, a duty to broadcast all public council meetings (including the proposed Community 
Area Committees) will create an additional administrative burden on councils and require 
additional resources.   

 
On do you have any comments on our proposals to enhance participation by children and 
young people through the public participation duty? It is commented that the proposal to 
enhance participation by children and young people through the public participation duty is 
both welcomed and fully supported. 

 
4.6 PART 4: Functions of County Councils and their Members 

Provisions in Part 4 of the Draft Bill deal with the functions of the new Councils and their 
members. It sets out the duties all Councillors must discharge and how breaches of the duties 
on Councillors are to be dealt with and makes further provision in relation to these duties. It 
provides that the Elected Mayor or the Leader must set objectives for the Cabinet and that 
candidates for Elected Mayor or the Leader must prepare a written manifesto. It also enables 
Councillors to be appointed as assistants to the Executive. It makes provision about 

Page 8



the appointment of the Chief Executive, setting his or her objectives, as well as making the 
post of Head of Democratic Services a chief officer. It makes various provisions relating to 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Standards Committees. The following response is 
made: 
 
The provisions for setting out performance duties for councillors are rejected. The proposals 
are inconsistent with expectations on Assembly Members where no such performance duties, 
standards, or right to recall are in place. For example whilst councillors would have 14 days to 
respond to correspondence, according to the Welsh Government website, Ministers have 17 
working days to respond to correspondence. Unlike councillors Welsh Government Ministers 
will also have access to substantially more resources at their disposal in making responses. 

 
It is also not clear why any failure to adhere to the proposed performance duties could be 
deemed as a breach of the code of conduct with sanctions to be imposed by the Standards 
Committee. The proposals as drafted risks the generation of vexatious complaints, which will 
affect the reputation of councillors and councils and create additional workload for Monitoring 
Officers and Standards Committees. 
 
On do you have any comments on the proposed duty on leaders of political groups or the 
monitoring and reporting roles of the Standards Committee? It is difficult to see how this would 
be monitored in practice. 

 
 On do you have any comments on our proposal to give the Welsh Ministers a power to direct 

the IRPW to have regard to guidance when reviewing the remuneration framework for 
Councillors? The proposal to give Welsh Government Ministers a power to direct the IRPW is 
not supported as it would undermine the independence of the Review Panel. 

 
 On do you agree the provisions relating to remote attendance in the 2011 Measure should be 

made more flexible? This is only supported under exceptional circumstances. 
 
 On do you have any comments on our proposal that Shadow Authorities should be required to 

appoint interim Returning Officers? It is noted that The Welsh Government is seeking further 
legislative opportunity to provide - that the Returning Officer role in each Principal Authority 
should form an intrinsic duty of the Chief Executive, for which no additional personal fee would 
be payable... Whilst there is no provision in the Draft Bill, we propose that the Shadow 
Authorities be given powers in the Bill for introduction to appoint Returning Officers to serve 
until such time as it was convenient – and this is supported. 

 
 On do you have any comments on the desirability of giving Councils the power to dismiss the 

Chief Executive, the Chief Finance Officer, the Monitoring Officer and the Head of Democratic 
Services through a vote? Giving councils the power to dismiss the Chief Executive, the Chief 
Finance Officer, the Monitoring Officer and the Head of Democratic Services through a vote 
by Full Council is supported, as long as safeguards around counter claims against unfair 
dismal can be built in. 

 
 On do you have any comments on our proposal to change the framework within which 

Councils and their Executive determine how their functions are to be allocated? It is agreed 
that the functions of Local Government provided for in regulations made under the Local 
Government Act 2000 are prescriptive and liable to becoming out dated. Thus the Welsh 
Government proposal to simplify the system and give greater flexibility to new Authorities 
following mergers with the repeal of section 13 of the 2000 Act by a more liberal provision 
welcome. 

 
On do you have any comments on our proposals in relation to the disposal and transfer of 
Local Authority assets? The disposal and transfer of Local Authority assets is supported 
where appropriate. 

  

Page 9



4.7 PART 5: County Councils: Improvement of Governance 
Part 5 of the Draft Bill sets out arrangements for a new improvement regime. It puts a general 
duty on Local Authorities to make and comply with governance arrangements. Local 
Authorities are required to have a corporate plan, to consult on it, to keep it under review and 
report on progress made. Local Authorities are to assess the quality of their governance 
through self assessment, peer assessment and combined assessment. Welsh Ministers will 
be able to arrange a review of a Local Authority’s governance arrangements and have a 
power to intervene when these arrangements are inadequate. Provision is made for better co-
ordination between the regulators. New functions and revised membership of Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committees are set out (previously called Audit Committees). It is the 
Welsh Government’s intention to commence the majority of these provisions when the Bill is 
enacted, in order that the transition to the new regime can start immediately and support the 
process of mergers. The following response is made: 
 
In broad terms we support the proposed changes to Local Authority performance and 
planning framework and the Amendment of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009. 
However, there are similar, but not identical requirements in other legislation, most notably the 
Well-being of Future Generations Act. There is an opportunity to streamline local government 
planning and performance reporting as well as reinforcing our Well-being Duty as our 
organising principal by making it clear that Local Authorities can bring these together into a 
single planning and reporting framework. The importance of different departments across the 
Welsh Government having a common understanding of the requirements spanning legislation 
needs to be stressed. Further guidance will be required regarding the criteria for selecting and 
appointing lay members to the proposed corporate governance and audit committee, 
particularly the role of Chair. 
 
On do you have any comments on the model approach to peer assessment? It is commented 
that the model approach to peer assessment is a helpful guide but is rather detailed which 
could hinder a flexible approach. Turning the current successful voluntary models of peer 
assessment into a prescriptive statutory assessment and regulatory regime is opposed.  

 
4.8 PART 6: Community Councils 

The provisions in Part 6 of the Draft Bill relate to Community and Town Councils requiring the 
Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales to undertake a review of Community 
Council arrangements. Community Councillors are required to complete training on matters 
specified by the Principal Council. The terms of Community Councillors elected in 2017 are 
extended to six years with Community Council terms becoming fixed at five years from 2023. 
The following response is made: 
 
The provisions relating to Community and Town Councils requiring the Local Democracy and 
Boundary Commission for Wales to undertake a review of Community Council arrangements 
are supported. The requirement for Community Councillors to complete training on matters 
specified by the Principal Council is also welcome, especially in the light of Community 
Councils being given on choosing the power of competency. We stress the need to make the 
training of specific relevance to Community and Town Councils. 
 
On do you have any comments on our proposals relating to compulsory training for 
Community Councillors? Compulsory training for Community Councillors is welcomed in 
ensuring the highest possible standards in meeting the needs of their local communities, but it 
is stressed that training needs to be relevant to Community Councillors. 
 
On do you have any comments on our proposal to repeal the legislation relating to community 
polls and to require instead that Local Authorities should implement a system of e-petitions? It 
is agreed that this proposal would -  enable communities (of place or interest) to express their 
views on matters which concern them, without the restrictions and costs which currently apply 
to community polls  - and is fully supported. 

  

Page 10



4.9 PART 7 of the Draft Bill workforce matters 
Part 7 deals with workforce matters enabling Welsh Ministers to publish guidance to public 
bodies on workforce matters. It provides for the establishment of a Public Services Staff 
Commission. The non-statutory Public Services Staff Commission has been operating since 
September 2015 using the Workforce Partnership Council as its primary reference point. The 
following response is made: 
 
The powers for Ministers to issue guidance which councils must have regard to over such 
matters of management and staffing is unacceptable, as it effectively gives Ministers more 
influence over a council’s staffing structure. 

 
 
5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 A thorough consideration to equality issues is contained within the Draft Bill.  There is an 

accompanying Equality Impact Assessment to the consultation document, and Welsh 
Language Impact Assessment. The Draft Bill closely relates to the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015, which has A More Equal Wales as one of its 7 national well-
being goals. 

 
 
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 If the Draft Bill is implemented there will be significant financial implications. Appendix B to the 

Bill contains a Regulatory Impact Assessment: Costs and Benefits Calculations. 
 
 
7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 If the Draft Bill is implemented there will be significant personnel implications with the move to 

mergers with other Local Authorities in Gwent. 
 
 
8. CONSULTATIONS 
 
8.1 This report has been sent to the consultees listed below and all comments received are 

reflected in this report. 
 
 
9. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
9.1 For Council to endorse the proposed draft consultation response.  
 
 
10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 To enable officers to submit a response to the Welsh Government’s consultation to the Draft 

Local Government (Wales) Bill. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 Local Government Act 2000. 
 
 
Author: Jackie Dix, Policy & Research Manager 
Consultees: Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive 

Cllr Keith Reynolds 
Cllr Colin Mann 

Page 11



Cllr Dave Rees 
 Rob Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection 

Dave Street, Corporate Director - Social Services 
Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Corporate Finance 
Gail Williams, Interim Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer. 

Page 12



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 A CHARTER FOR 
 COMMUNITY AND  
 TOWN COUNCILS 
         Revised May 2011 
 
Agreed at meeting on 30th July 2014 that there was no 
requirement to review the Charter.   
 
             SIARTER AR GYFER 
 CYNGHORAU 
 CYMUNED A THREF 
 

 
 
 
  

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



 

SECTION ONE: 

EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION 
 
The County Borough will provide to Community Councils 
 

• The names, addresses and telephone numbers of all County Borough Councillors 

• The names, titles, location, telephone and fax numbers of all Directors and Heads of 
Service 

• A timetable of County Borough meetings 

• Agendas and papers for the Community Council Liaison Sub-Committee meetings 

• Links to agenda, reports and minutes of Committee meetings 

• Details of Chairmen and Vice Chairmen of major Committees 
 
The information will be updated regularly 
 
Community Councils will provide to the County Borough Council 
 

• The names, addresses and telephone numbers of all Community Councillors 

• The name, address and telephone number of the Clerk to the Community Council 

• A list of meetings 

• Agendas and papers for Community Council meetings 

• Agenda items for the Community Council Liaison Sub-Committee meetings through the 
Town and Community Council Liaison Committee 

 
The information will be updated regularly 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NB.  Throughout this document, the term community council(s) also refers to town 
council(s) 

Page 14



 

SECTION TWO: 

LIAISON BETWEEN THE COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 AND COMMUNITY COUNCILS 
 
The County Borough Council will: 
 

• Nominate a person who will be the first point of contact for Community Councils for all 
County Borough matters and from whom all County Borough Council information will be 
sent 

 

• Hold quarterly meetings of the Community Council Liaison Sub-Committee, to which 
representatives of all Community Councils will be invited, namely one Community 
Councillor and the Clerk from each Community Council.  The Committee will be chaired 
alternate years by a County Borough Councillor and Community Councillor.  New 
Community Councils will be invited to join 

 

• Accept items for agenda for the Community Council Liaison Sub-Committee at least fifteen 
working days before the date of the meeting 

 

• Acknowledge receipt of correspondence within seven working days 
 

• Send agendas and papers for meetings to Community Councils at least three clear working 
days before the Community Council Liaison Sub-Committee is due to meet, unless it is 
unavoidable that papers are delayed 

 

• Inform the relevant Community Councils within twenty working days of the outcome on 
issues (requested by the Community Council) requiring action by the County Borough 
Council.  If this is not possible, the County Borough Council will write to the Community 
Council(s) informing them of the delay and stipulate a revised date 

 

• On receipt of correspondence written in Welsh the reply will be in Welsh, adhering to the 
targets for correspondence in English as set out above 

 

• Provide a person to communicate in Welsh with the Community Council(s) if required.  If a 
Welsh speaking person is not immediately available, the caller will be contacted as soon as 
possible 

 

• Ensure that the Cabinet work programme is copied to each Clerk on a regular basis  
 
 
 

Page 15



• The Community Council(s) will 
 

• Nominate a representative (one Community Councillor and Clerk) to attend Community 
Council Liaison Sub-Committee meetings. A substitute should be appointed in the event 
that the nominated Member or Clerk is not be able to be present - the responsibility being 
with that Member/Clerk to forward the papers to the substitute.     
  

• Provide the County Borough Council with issues for the agenda of the Community Council 
Liaison Sub-Committee at least fifteen working days before the date of the meeting 

 

• Direct all correspondence (except where instructed differently by the County Borough 
Council) to the Senior Committee Services Officer who has responsibility for Community 
Council Liaison 

 

• Inform the County Borough Council within twenty working days of the outcome on issues 
requiring action by the Community Council(s).  If this is not possible, the Community 
Council will write to the County Borough Council informing them of the delay and stipulate 
a revised date. 

Page 16



 

SECTION THREE: 

CONSULTATION ON SPECIFIC SUBJECTS 
 
The County Borough Council will provide written information to the Council(s).  The 
information will: 
 

• Be sent to Council(s) at least twenty working days before the closing date for responses 
where possible.  If this cannot be achieved, the County Borough Council will clearly explain 
the reasons for the shorter timescale 

 

• Include a clear statement on the matters on which the Council(s) are being consulted 
 

• Include a closing date for responses being mindful of the frequency of community council 
meetings and August recess when no meetings are held  

 

• Include copies of all relevant documents, including plans if requested 
 

• Include an officer contact name and telephone number for specific queries 
 

• Include the name, title and address of the officer to whom responses should be sent 
 
The Community Council(s) will: 
 

• Respond in writing within the time limit set by the County Borough Council 
 

• If this is not possible, formally request an extension to the time limit before the original time 
limit has expired 

 

• If there is no response the County Borough be advised accordingly 
 
After consultation, the County Borough Council will: 
 

• Inform the Community Council(s) in writing of its decision within fifteen working days of the 
decision being made 

 

• Explain, if necessary, why the decision is different from the view put forward by the 
Community Council(s) 

 

• Consult with Community Council(s) again if the substance of the proposal changes 
 

Page 17



 

SUBJECTS FOR CONSULTATION 

Chief Executive's 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Local Recreation 
or other Facilities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Education 
 
 
 

Waste 
management , 
waste collection 
and Cleansing  
 
 
 
Environmental 
Health, Trading 
Standards, 
Community 
Safety 
 
 

Highways, 
Access 
and Public 
Transport 
 
 
 
 
General 

• Community strategy  

• Caerphilly County Borough Council's Welsh Language Scheme  

• Improvement objectives 

• Economic Development/Tourism 
 

• The Development Plan  

• Applications for planning permission (via weekly list) 

• Applications for listed buildings consent; proposals for additions to the listed 
buildings list 

• Establishment of conservation areas; tree preservation orders 

• Advertisement control 

• Street naming 
 

• Major changes of use or closure of leisure or sports fields 

• Major changes of use or closure of community centres or community facilities 

• Major new arrangements or changes to play areas 

• Major new initiatives and developments in local arts provision 

• Opening, closure or alteration or opening times of libraries (including mobile 
libraries) 

• Community projects which relate to a specified locality or community  
 

• Proposals for the opening or closure of schools under local education 
authority control or funding 

 

• Major changes and new methods of the provision of domestic waste 
collection and disposal including the development of new treatment and 
disposal facilities 

• Major changes and new methods of street cleansing or litter clearance 

• Changes to the provision and location of recycling facilities 

• Public convenience provision 
 

• The establishment or abolition of litter control zone 

•  Establishment of No Cold Calling Zones 

• Declaration of an Air Quality Management Area 

• Applications for prior approval of construction works 
 
 

• Major highway maintenance schemes; winter highway maintenance regimes 

• Major traffic management schemes, road safety schemes 

• Permanent highway closures or diversions (including footpaths, bridleways, 
cycleways and other minor highways) 

• Changes in parking (including off and on street) provision  

• Local authority supported bus services; local authority bus shelters 

• Alterations in rail services where notified to and supported by the authority 
 

• Land disposal (sale or lease) 

•  Other areas of council business not detailed which are key and fundamental to 
      the majority of wards that have community/town councils   

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 To consider and approve the minutes of the meeting held on 2nd December 2015 (minute nos. 1 - 5).
	6 Response to the Local Government (Wales)  Bill - report presented to Council on 26th January 2016 attached.
	7 Review of the Charter - copy attached.

